#### **EDUCATION BOARD**

# Thursday, 20 July 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Education Board held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 20 July 2017 at 3.00 pm

#### Present

### Members:

Henry Colthurst (Chairman) The Lord Mountevans

Ann Holmes (Deputy Chairman) Sheriff & Alderman William Russell

Sheriff & Alderman Peter Estlin Ian Seaton

Stuart Fraser Deputy Philip Woodhouse

Christopher Hayward Roy Blackwell Deputy Catherine McGuinness Veronica Wadley

#### Officers:

Alistair MacLellan - Town Clerk's Department
Stephanie Basten - Town Clerk's Department
Claire Tunley - Economic Development Office

Jack Joslin - The City Bridge Trust
Mark Jarvis - Chamberlain's Department

Emily Rimington - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department
Andrew Carter - Director of Community and Children's Services

Mark Emmerson - Education Strategy Director

Gerald Mehrtens - Director of Academy Development
Barbara Hamilton - Head of Adult Community Learning

Jeanne Barnard - Education Policy Manager

Sharon Ament - Chair of Learning and Engagement Forum

Sian Bird - Barbican Centre

Grace Rawnsley - Head of Learning (Open Spaces)
Abigail Tinkler - Learning Manager (Open Spaces)

# 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Deputy John Bennett, Caroline Haines, Tim Campbell and Helen Sanson.

# 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Sheriff & Alderman William Russell declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 9 (Review of Funding to the Guildhall School Music Trust and the Guildhall School of Music and Drama for Scholarships) as a Member of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama.

## 3. PUBLIC MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2017 were approved as a correct record.

### 4. EDUCATION STRATEGY UPDATE

Members considered an update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding the Education Strategy.

# **RESOLVED**, that Members

- Approve the updated prioritised actions for Objective 1 and Objective 3 of the Education Strategy 2016-19.
- Agree that officers continue to refine the prioritised actions in consultation with the Chairman of the Education Board, and report back in September with a final version of prioritised actions for Objective 1 and 3, and an action plan for the 2017/18 academic year.

# 5. EDUCATION ACTIVITIES UPDATE

Members considered an update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding activities and events undertaken in support of the Education Strategy, and the following points were made.

- The Education Policy Manager agreed to update Members outside of the meeting on the details regarding the length and content of the Prefects' Leadership Course.
- A Member requested that events such as the City of London Freemen's School Residential Course should be advertised to the City Family of Schools earlier in the year.

### RECEIVED

#### 6. **SAFEGUARDING**

The Education Strategy Director noted that there were no safeguarding issues to bring to the attention of the Board.

# 7. EDUCATION BUDGET UPDATE

Members considered a joint update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services and the Chamberlain regarding the Education Budget. Members requested that future iterations of the report retain the original budget figure for individual items and instead focus on actual or forecast reporting variances against those figures.

# **RESOLVED**, that Members

- Approve the proposed revised Education budget and note the latest forecast Outturn position.
- Note that there has been a £4k increase in the overall budget as a result of an additional corporate funding to cover expected higher pension costs. Apart from this amendment, aggregate expenditure matched budget although individual items showed some variances.

### 8. **REVENUE OUTTURN 2016/17**

Members considered a joint report of the Chamberlain and the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding the Revenue Outturn 2016/17.

# **RECEIVED**

# 9. REVIEW OF FUNDING TO THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL TRUST AND THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA FOR SCHOLARSHIPS

Members considered a joint report of the Director of Community Services and the Chamberlain regarding a review of funding for the Guildhall School Trust and the Guildhall School of Music and Drama for scholarships and the following points were made.

- In response to a question, the Education Policy Manager clarified that the funding went towards both bursaries and scholarships.
- Members noted that they were minded to approve the recommendations set out within the paper subject to future reporting from the Guildhall School of Music and Drama featuring detail on the allocation between scholarship and bursary funding. Future reporting should also include detail on whether funding awards were means tested.

### **RESOLVED**, that Members

- Agree to continue the City Corporation's payment of £30,000 to the School to fund scholarships for the 2018/19 and 2019/20 financial years subject to the School reporting back annually to the Education Board on the numbers of scholarships awarded and the impact of the grant.
- Agree to review the payment again after a further two years' funding in the context of the City Corporation's education priorities at the time.

# 10. REVISED ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR THE CITY EDUCATIONAL TRUST FUND AND THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION COMBINED EDUCATION CHARITY

Members considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer regarding revised eligibility criteria for the City Educational Trust Fund and the City of London Corporation Combined Education Charity.

# **RESOLVED**, that Members

- Approve the amended eligibility criteria for the Charities; and
- Approve the dates for the next deadline of the Education & Employment theme of the Central Grants Programme.

# 11. APPOINTMENT OF GOVERNORS TO NEW SCHOOLS' LOCAL GOVERNING BODIES

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding the appointment of governors to new schools' local governing bodies and the following points were made.

- Members commented that the balance of skills across the various local governing bodies was promising, but that Highgate Hill and Newham Collegiate Sixth could benefit from some more business skills.
- The Chairman noted that Dame Colette Bowe had been identified as potential Governor for Highbury Grove and would be put forward for consideration by the City of London Academies Trust.
- The Chairman added that two vacancies had arisen on the Board of the City of London Academy Islington. Members agreed in principle to the appointment of His Honour Judge Philip Katz and Russell Wilmer to fill the resultant skillsets.
- The Deputy Chairman noted that the skills audit template used by the Education Unit and the City of London Academies Trust could be reviewed to ensure it accurately captured governor skills sets.

# **RESOLVED**, that Members

- Note the City of London Academies Trust Board had approved the appointment of Trust Governors on the local governing bodies of the Trust's new schools, as per Appendix 1.
- Approve the Chairmen of each local governing body, as per the Sponsorship Agreement.
- Note that a Chairman was still being sought for the City of London Academy Highgate Hill.
- Grant delegated authority to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman, to appoint to the two City nominee vacancies at the City of London Academy Islington.

### 12. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING

Members considered a report of the Town Clerk on action taken since the last meeting.

#### **RECEIVED**

# 13. ACADEMIES DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Director of Academy Development was heard regarding the academies development programme and the following points were made.

- Highgate Hill, Shoreditch Park and Primary Academy Islington were all scheduled to open in September 2017. Newham Collegiate Sixth would open in March 2018 due to ongoing lease negotiations. The London Borough of Newham would provide funding for the period September 2017 – March 2018.
- There were two issues concerning Highbury Grove, namely the fact that a neighbouring school shared private finance initiative (PFI) infrastructure with Highbury Grove, and second whether a proposed one form of entry (1FE) increase should be deferred one year whilst the school was absorbed into the City of London Academies Trust.
- In response to a question from a Member, the Director of Academy Development noted that admissions numbers for the three academies were as follows: 130 for Shoreditch Park, 44 for Primary Academy Islington and 86 for Highgate Hill. Both pan London and local factors affected the number of acceptances versus the number of applications.
- The Chairman noted that the City of London Corporation had overseen a significant expansion of its academy offer in recent years. Given that the skills element of the Education Strategy was an emerging focus of the Board, he would welcome a steer from Members further academy expansion. Members agreed that future openings should be deferred until the new wave of schools was fully integrated unless a very pressing case could be made for the City of London Corporation to sponsor a further academy.
- In response to a comment from the Chairman, the Education Strategy Director noted that capital works to Highbury Grove would not prove a problem for the existing site, as access was directly from the road and would not affect the access to the existing school. Project management would be overseen by the City of London Academies Trust, and the management of Highbury Grove would be supported by both the Executive Principal of City of London Academy Islington and the Chief Executive of the City of London Academies Trust.
- The Director of Academy Development noted that there was a demand for sixth form places, and that the capacity of an additional Sixth Form block would benefit the City of London Academies Trust as a whole.
- In response to a question from a Member, the Director of Community and Children's Services confirmed there had been a pan-London dip in demand for school places and the reasons for this fall were being examined by London Councils. A wider paper on demand and the future growth of the City's academy sponsorship would be submitted to a future meeting of the Board.

**RESOLVED**, that Members approve the deferral of the capital build at Highbury Grove by 12 months to the 2018/19 academic year.

# 14. CITY OF LONDON LEARNING & ENGAGEMENT FORUM (LEF) - ESTABLISHING A CULTURAL EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP

Members considered a report of the Chair of the City of London Learning & Engagement Forum regarding the establishment of a cultural education partnership. The Chairman noted that the funding for the proposed learning initiative had been agreed in principle by the Policy and Resources Committee, but that a satisfactory business case had yet to be presented to him and the Deputy Chairman under delegated authority. To allow the project to progress, Members therefore agreed to release £30,000 of the agreed funding subject to a further report and business case being submitted to the November 2017 meeting of the Board.

**RESOLVED**, that Members approve the release of £30,000 of the agreed £150,000 funding to allow the proposal progress, subject to a business case being submitted to a future meeting of the Education Board for approval.

# 15. STEM AND POLICY EDUCATION PROGRAMME LEGACY - POLICY INITIATIVES FUND APPLICATION

Members considered a report of the Director of Open Spaces regarding the STEM and Policy Education Programme Legacy and a further Policy Initiatives Fund Application. Members noted that the proposal had been approved by the Policy and Resources Committee and the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee.

In response to a comment from a Member, the Head of Learning noted that the City's support for Forest schools could be examined by the City of London Learning and Engagement Forum.

### **RECEIVED**

# 16. EMPLOYABILITY STRATEGY 2017-20

Members considered a report of the Director of Economic Development regarding the Employability Strategy 2017-2020 and the following points were made.

- The Education Strategy Director noted that a detailed action plan to support the strategy would be submitted to the Board in late 2017.
- In response to a comment from a Member, the Education Strategy
  Director noted that the development of soft skills was a focus of the
  Education Strategy. The Deputy Chairman added that embedding
  positive behaviours and attitude to work should be a particular focus.
- In response to a comment from a Member, the Director of Community and Children's Services agreed to examine whether all City Schools should consider signing up for the National Citizens Service.
- In response to a question from a Member, the Education Strategy Director confirmed that the City of London Academies Trust was signed up to the Government's Careers & Enterprise Company.

### **RECEIVED**

# 17. CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION'S APPRENTICESHIPS PROGRAMME

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding the City of London Corporation's Apprenticeships Programme and the following points were made.

- In response to a question from a Member, the Head of Adult Community Learning confirmed that apprentices for the City Open Spaces would be recruited into the July 2017 cohort of apprentices.
- The Business Engagement Manager (Economic Development Office) noted that financial services firms paid 10% of the Apprenticeship Levy but only employed 3% of the total apprentices. Further work would be needed to be done to increase that percentage.

#### RECEIVED

# 18. **QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD**There were no questions.

# 19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT Education Board Strategy Day

In response to a request from a Member, the Town Clerk agreed to convene an away day for the Board to discuss elements of strategy.

# 20. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

**RESOLVED** – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

# 21. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2017 were approved as a correct record.

# 22. ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR CITY ACADEMIES

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding additional funding for City academies.

# 23. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK MONITORING VISITS SUMMER 2016 - PREDICTED OUTCOMES

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding predicted outcomes arising from the quality assurance and accountability framework monitoring visits conducted during summer 2017.

# 24. PROVISION OF ADDITIONAL PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES AND SOCIAL HOUSING ON THE FORMER RICHARD CLOUDESLEY SCHOOL SITE, GOLDEN LANE, EC1

Members considered a joint report of the Director of Community and Children's Services and the City Surveyor regarding the provision of additional primary school places and social housing on the former Richard Cloudesley School site, Golden Lane, EC1.

25. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

There were no questions.

26. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was one item of urgent business regarding the format of Board agenda packs.

Chairman		

The meeting ended at 4.31 pm

Contact Officer: Alistair MacLellan Alistair.MacLellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk